
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

September 1, 2021 
 
Chad Askew, RA 
Housing Studio 
333 West Trade Street 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
 
RE: Dwelling Separation Requirements Related to Single Means fo Egress 

2018 NCBC 420 and 1006.3 

Mr. Askew: 

This letter is in response to your request for formal interpretation dated August 18, 2021 that was 
received in NCDOI by email on August 19, 2021.  Your request for formal interpretation states in my 
words: 

For a configuration, as submitted in “Exhibit ‘B’ of Attachment A below, does the use of Table 
1006.3.2(1) allow all the dwellings units to be separated as allowed by Section 420.2 or are firewalls 
complying with Section 706 required between the pods? 

Remarks: 

The term “pod” as used in this interpretation means a group of dwelling units with a maximum quantity 
of 4 dwelling units in the group. 

Code sections noted in this letter are referring to the 2018 edition of the NC Building Code (NCBC) unless 
otherwise noted. 

This interpretation assumes that the Group R-2 occupancies in question are dwellings. 

Attachment A is a copy of your request for interpretation.  It is attached to this letter as a matter of 
reference. 

Exhibit ’B’ of Attachment A shows 3 sets of 4 dwelling units.  This interpretation assumes these dwellings 
to be on a level other than the level of exit discharge with a maximum of 4 dwellings egressing to a 
single exit.  The story, however, has 3 means of egress. 

Code Analysis: 

Section 1006.3 - Egress From Stories or Occupied Roofs states: 

1006.3 - Egress from stories or occupied roofs. The means of egress system serving any story or 
occupied roof shall be provided with the number of exits or access to exits based on the aggregate 
occupant load served in accordance with this section. The path of egress travel to an exit shall not 
pass through more than one adjacent story. 

Comment: This section is the charging paragraph for Section 1006.3.2.  It does not clarify the issue at 
hand. 



 

 

Section 1006.3.2 – Single Exits states in part: 

1006.3.2 Single exits. A single exit or access to a single exit shall be permitted from any story or 
occupied roof where one of the following conditions exist: 

1. The occupant load, number of dwellings units and common path of travel distance does not 
exceed the values in Table 1006.3.2(1) or Table 1006.3.2(2). 

Comment: IBC Commentary for Table 1006.3.2(1) provides clarity (See Exhibit ‘F’ of Attachment A 
below).  Since the purpose of the limit is to restrict the number of persons that can be affected by a single 
event that might block the means of egress, it seems plausible that the intent is to limit the number of 
dwelling units that would be affected by a single fire event and not the total number of exits from a 
story.  This would then support the idea of multiple pods per story with a single exit per pod and no fire 
walls separating the pods. 

Table 1006.3.2(1) footnote “b” states: 

b. This table is used for R-2 occupancies consisting of dwelling units. For R-2 occupancies consisting 
of sleeping units, use Table 1006.3.2(2). 

Comment: The footnote indicates that the table applies to Group R-2 occupancies that consist of 
dwelling units.  The table, therefore, applies to the situation shown in Exhibit ‘B’ of Attachment A below. 

Conclusion: 

Table 1006.3.2(1) is not intending to limit application to buildings where only 4 dwellings units exist per 
story per building but intends to limit 4 dwellings units on a story to a single exit.  The 2015 IBC 
Commentary shown in Exhibit ‘F’ of Attachment A below supports this conclusion.  The result is that you 
can have multiple pods with single exit per pod on a story separated with fire partitions as required by 
Section 420.2 instead of fire walls complying with Section 706. 

Please call if you have comments or questions. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Carl Martin, RA 
Deputy Commissioner 
Division Chief of Engineering 
 
cc: File 

Bridget Herring, Chair – BCC 
Danny Priest, Vice-Chair – BCC 

  



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 



 

 

 
  



 

 

 
 

  



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

   



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

  



 

 

 
 


